

INSTITUT KIMIA MALAYSIA

Minutes of the 56th Annual General Meeting held on Saturday, 18 March 2023 at One World Hotel, Bandar Utama, Petaling Jaya



INSTITUT KIMIA MALAYSIA

MALAYSIAN INSTITUTE OF CHEMISTRY

(Inaugurated on 8 April 1967, incorporated under Chemists Act 1975 on 1 November 1977)

127B, JALAN AMINUDDIN BAKI, TAMAN TUN DR ISMAIL, 60000 KUALA LUMPUR
TEL: 603-7728 3272 FAX: 603-7728 9909

EMAIL: ikmhq@ikm.org.my WEBSITE: http://www.ikm.org.my FACEBOOK: Institut Kimia Malaysia

President: Datuk ChM Dr. Soon Ting Kueh

MINUTES OF THE 56th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) HELD ON 18 MARCH 2023 AT 2.10PM AT ONE WORLD HOTEL, BANDAR UTAMA, PETALING JAYA

The meeting was called to order by Datuk ChM Dr Soon Ting Kueh, who on behalf of the Council, welcomed members to the 56th AGM of IKM. A total of 124 members attended the AGM and the attendance list is attached as Appendix A.

1. Presidential Address

1.1 The President presented PowerPoint slides describing IKM activities for the term 2022/2023. The year 2022 was described as a successful year due to recovery from the pandemic. IKM managed to organize many programmes.

1.2 Events conducted in 2022 -

- 10th Symposium on Best Practices & Innovations in Laboratory Management (10BPI-Lab) 2021 was held on 24 & 25 March 2022 at KLCC, Kuala Lumpur.
- Forum on Chemistry & Climate Change was held on 26 March 2022 at KLCC, Kuala Lumpur.
- IKM 55th AGM & IKM Law Hieng Ding Foundation 1st AGM was held on 26 March 2022 at KLCC, Kuala Lumpur.
- International Congress on Pure & Applied Chemistry (ICPAC) Kota Kinabalu 2022, Sabah was held from 22-27 November 2022.
- A total of 25 courses were conducted at IKM Professional Centre.
- Kuiz Kimia Kebangsaan Malaysia (K3M) 2022 was held on 28 October 2022. A total of 35,922 students throughout Malaysia registered for K3M 2022.
- A total of 39 participants registered for IKM LMIC Refresher Course 2022. The IKM LMIC Examinations were held from 10-12 September 2022 at Universiti Malaya (KL). A total of 49 candidates registered for the examinations.
- IKM Laboratory Excellence Awards 2022 was awarded to 68 laboratories.
- Malam Kimia & Presentation of IKM Awards was held on 2 December 2022 at One World Hotel, Bandar Utama, PJ.

1.3 The following events were lined-up for 2023 -

- IKM Forum on Looking Ahead & Moving Forward, 18 March 2023, One World Hotel, Bandar Utama, Petaling Jaya. Council will study the inputs received from participants.
- IKM 56th AGM, 18 March 2023, One World Hotel, Bandar Utama, Petaling Jaya.
- IKM Law Hieng Ding Foundation 2nd AGM, 18 March 2023, One World Hotel, Bandar Utama, Petaling Jaya.
- 9th Network of Inter-Asian Chemistry Educators (9NICE) Conference 2023, 28-30 July 2023, Kuching, Sarawak.
- International Congress on Pure & Applied Chemistry (ICPAC) Bali 2023, 13-17 September 2023, Bali, Indonesia.
- 16th Asian Conference on Analytical Sciences (ASIANALYSIS XVI) 2023, 9 12 October 2023, Kuala Lumpur Convention Centre, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

- 8th Edition of Malaysia International Scientific Instrument and Laboratory Equipment Exhibition and Conference (LabAsia 2023), 10 – 12 October 2023, Kuala Lumpur Convention Center (KLCC).
- Malam Kimia & Presentation of IKM Awards, 1 December 2023.
- 1.4 Membership of the Institute increased from 4947 to 5474 for the year 2022.
- 1.5 IKM will be hosting major events in 2025 & 2026
 - 53rd IUPAC General Assembly and 50th World Chemistry Congress (IUPAC 2025), 11-18 July 2025, Kuala Lumpur.
 - 51st IUPAC World Polymer Congress (MACRO 2026), 5-9 July 2026, Kuching, Sarawak.

2. Minutes of the 55th AGM held on 26 March 2022

- 2.1 The draft minutes of the 55th AGM was uploaded at IKM Website and distributed to the members present at 56th AGM.
- 2.2 The minutes of the 55th AGM were adopted after being proposed and seconded as follows:

Proposer: ChM Buvearasan a/I Muniandy

Seconder: ChM Lee Shoek Yin

3. Matters Arising from the Minutes of the 55th AGM

- 3.1 Item 4.13: The President informed that IKM would not publish a minimum wage for Chemists in private sector. IKM will consider to discuss with Public Services Department on introducing a special grade / allowance for Chemists in government agencies. The President suggested that Council could propose a reference starting salary for Chemist in the private sector and this will be made known to the industries.
- 3.2 Item 4.16: ChM Dr Lim Vuanghao enquired about IKM's preparedness towards digital avenue, Fourth Industrial Revolution (4IR) and Artificial Intelligence (AI) in chemistry. The Hon. Secretary informed that IKM organized a Forum on IKM Moving Forward attended mainly by the young chemists who gave valuable inputs. The President informed that 4IR and AI in Chemistry involves invention and innovation and IKM's Committee on Chemistry Invention & Innovation (CCII) will discuss further on this.
- 3.3 Item 5.14: The President informed that IKM is a professional body for Chemists and only chemistry graduates are eligible for membership application. IKM does organize activities or events involving school students and postgraduates.

4. Annual Report of the Institute for 2022/2023

- 4.1 IKM Hon. Secretary, ChM Chang Hon Fong, presented the PowerPoint slides of the Annual Report. A copy of the Annual Report was uploaded at IKM Website and distributed to the members present at 56th AGM.
- 4.2 The report covers the period from the last Annual General Meeting to the Annual General Meeting on 18 March 2023.
- 4.3 A total of 25 courses were conducted at IKM Professional Centre. A total of 484 participants registered for these courses.
- 4.4 Four issues of Berita IKM Chemistry in Malaysia were published. Four issued comprising 79 articles of the Malaysia Journal of Chemistry were published online.

- 4.5 Malam Kimia 2022 was held on 2 December 2022 at One World Hotel, Bandar Utama. IKM Gold Medal was awarded to Prof ChM Ts Dr Taufig Yap Yun Hin. About 680 guests attended Malam Kimia.
- 4.6 IKM membership stands at 5474 members as at 31 December 2022. There was a nett increase in membership of 527 for the year 2022.
- 4.7 Activities conducted by Divisions and Committees were highlighted by the Hon. Secretary.
- 4.8 IKM has good working relationship with Ministries, Government Agencies, Scientific Organizations and other Professional Bodies as listed in the annual report.
- 4.9 The Hon. Secretary invited members to comment on the annual report for 2022/2023.
- 4.10 ChM Buvearasan a/l Muniandy enquired about IKM's commitment into awareness and reduction of carbon footprint. IKM President informed that Council are well informed regarding carbon footprint and fully supports Sustainable Development Goals (SDG) 2030.
- 4.11 ChM Damien Khoo Yiyuan suggested awards to be given to Chemists who have successfully commercialized products and to reduce the gap between academia and the industry.
- 4.12 Academician ChM Dr Ho Chee Cheong proposed the Annual Report of the Institute for 2022/2023 to be adopted and seconded by DCP(R) Assoc Prof Dato' ChM Dr Yew Chong Hooi.

5. Annual Statement of Accounts of the Institute and the Auditor's Report for 2022

- 5.1 The Hon. Treasurer, ChM Dr Malarvili Ramalingam welcomed members for the 56th AGM.
- 5.2 ChM Dr Malarvili informed that the financial statements have been examined by both internal auditors for IKM, ChM Eric Seah Peng King and ChM Lee Yiu Lay. The report was subsequently submitted to the external auditors and in accordance with Malaysian Private Entities Reporting Standard following the guidelines issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code).
- 5.3 The Hon. Treasurer highlighted the statement of income and accumulated surplus for IKM HQ. Total accumulated surplus for year 2022 was RM13,208,355 compared to RM12,555,820 in year 2021. Total income for year 2022 was RM2,026,081 compared to RM1,555,996 in year 2021. Operation expenses for year 2022 was RM1,237,009. The surplus before taxation for year 2022 was RM789,072 and taxation amounted to RM136,537. The surplus after taxation amounted to RM652,535 in year 2022.
- 5.4 Income from other activities for year 2022 was RM1,009,910 compared to RM674,557 in year 2021. This was due to an increase in the number of events/activities held in 2022.
- 5.5 Other income increased to RM418,211 from RM345,849 in year 2021. This was due to increase in dividend from investment, interest from time deposits, rental and sundry income.
- 5.6 Under Current Assets, the deposits and prepayments amounted to RM136,097 due to completed payments for events that was carried forward to year 2023. Under Current Liabilities, the other payables, deposits and accruals amounted to RM190,429 due to income collected for events/functions in 2022 and carried forward to year 2023 (event/function yet to be completed).

- 5.7 The accumulated surplus carried forward for the Benevolent Fund's was RM785,425 compared to RM747,666 in year 2021.
- 5.8 Surplus after taxation for the Education Fund was RM56,672. The accumulated surplus carried forward was RM696,387 compared to RM639,715 in year 2021.
- 5.9 Taman Sea Property Account rental income increased to RM135,558 from RM109,358 in year 2021. Distribution to participating branches was maintained at RM54,000 as the year before. The fair value loss on this property amounted to RM1,200,000.00 resulting in deficit after taxation amounting to RM1,121,559. This reduced the accumulated surplus carried forward to RM555,322 from RM1,730,881 in year 2021.
- 5.10 The Hon. Treasurer informed that the Consolidated Final Accounts consists of General Fund, Education Fund and Benevolent Fund. The General Fund consists of IKM HQ, Taman SEA Property and IKM Branches' Accounts.
- 5.11 The net income from functions was RM1,064,736 compared to RM763,192 in 2021. Other income was RM551,448 compared to RM448,786 in 2021. Total income increased to RM2,319,714 from RM1,826,368 in year 2021. The deficit for the year was RM314,001 due to the fair value loss on investment property. The accumulated surplus carried forward was RM17,452,805 compared to RM17,766,806 in year 2021.
- 5.12 The Hon. Treasurer presented the branch accounts before ending her presentation by thanking members and invited members to comment on the annual financial statement for 2022.
- 5.13 As there were no further queries or comments, the Financial Statements and the Auditors Report for 2022 were adopted.

Proposer: ChM Ts Damien Khoo Yiyuan

Seconder: Snr. Assoc. Prof. ChM Dr Kathiresan a/l Sathasivam

6. To consider amendments to IKM Gold Medal Award

The President proposed amendments to the award. As requested by the members, the award details will be uploaded at IKM website for consideration and comments from members. A decision will be made at the 57th AGM in 2024.

7. Election of 7 Council members to fill vacancies in the Council

- 7.1 The Councils Members who retired by rotation and due to appointment of YBrs ChM Halimah Binti Abdul Rahim as Director General of Kimia Malaysia were Datuk ChM Dr Soon Ting Kueh, Assoc Prof ChM Dr Juan Joon Ching, ChM Chang Hon Fong, Dato' ChM Dr Hj Mas Rosemal Hakim bin Mas Haris, Prof ChM Dr Mansor Ahmad and Asst. Prof ChM Dr Yvonne Choo Shuen Lann.
- 7.2 IKM Registrar chaired the nominations and were proposed and seconded as follows:

a) Datuk ChM Dr Soon Ting Kueh,

Proposer: DCP(R) Assoc Prof Dato' ChM Dr Yew Chong Hooi

Seconder: Academician ChM Dr Ho Chee Cheong

b) Academician ChM Dr Ho Chee Cheong

Proposer: ChM Tan Swee Hua

Seconder: Dato' ChM Tang Ngat Ngoh

c) ChM Chang Hon Fong

Proposer: Assoc Prof ChM Dr Juan Joon Ching Seconder: ChM Dr Malarvili Ramalingam

d) Assoc Prof ChM Dr Zainiharyati Bt Mohd Zain

Proposer: ChM Marina binti Mokhtar

Seconder: ChM Dr Nor Aziyah binti Bakhari

e) Prof ChM Dr Rusli Daik

Proposer: Datuk ChM Dr Soon Ting Kueh Seconder: Prof ChM Dr Lee Yook Heng

f) Snr Assoc Prof ChM Dr Kathiresan a/l Sathasivam

Proposer: Dato' ChM Dr Hj Mas Rosemal Hakim Mas Haris

Seconder: ChM Dr Lim Vuanghao

g) Assoc Prof ChM Dr Juan Joon Ching

Proposer: ChM Shanmuga Suntharam a/l Kittappa Seconder: Assoc Prof ChM Dr Zainiharyati Bt Mohd Zain

h) ChM Dr Nurul Huda binti Abd Karim

Proposer: ChM Dr Yang Farina

Seconder: ChM Dr Nurfaizah Abu Tahrim

i) <u>Dato' ChM Dr Hj Mas Rosemal Hakim Mas Haris</u>

Proposer: ChM Ts Damien Khoo Yiyuan

Seconder: Snr Assoc Prof ChM Dr Kathiresan a/l Sathasivam

j) Prof ChM Dr Mansor Ahmad

Proposer: Academician ChM Dr Ho Chee Cheong

Seconder: ChM Yap Fei Ching

k) Prof ChM Dr Teh Geok Bee

Proposer: ChM Li Hui Ling

Seconder: ChM Teo Chook Kiong

I) Asst. Prof ChM Dr Yvonne Choo Shuen Lann

Proposer: ChM Steven Tea Hing San

Seconder: ChM Dr Nurul Huda binti Abd Karim

m) ChM Dr Fatimah Salim

Proposer: Assoc Prof ChM Dr Lee Hooi Ling Seconder: Datin ChM Dr Zuriati Zakaria

n) ChM Dr Lim Vuanghao

Proposer: Snr Assoc Prof ChM Dr Kathiresan a/I Sathasivam

Seconder: ChM Ts Damien Khoo Yiyuan

o) ChM Dr Nor Aziyah binti Bakhari

Proposer: ChM Marlinda binti Musa

Seconder: ChM Marina binti Mokhtar

p) Assoc Prof ChM Dr Lee Hooi Ling

Proposer: ChM Dr Fatimah Salim Seconder: ChM Lee Shoek Yin

q) Dato' Hj ChM Mohamed Zaini Bin Abdul Rahman

Proposer: Datin ChM Maimonah Sulaiman

Seconder: ChM Yap Fei Ching

r) Prof ChM Dr Phang Sook Wai

Proposer: ChM Dr New Siu Yee

Seconder: ChM Dr Nurul Asikin Bt Mijan

- 7.3 ChM Yap Fei Ching proposed the nominations be closed. The motion was seconded by Academician ChM Dr Ho Chee Cheong. There were no objections from members. DCP(R) Assoc Prof Dato' ChM Dr Yew Chong Hooi and ChM Shanmuga Suntharam a/l Kittappa were appointed as scrutineers.
- 7.4 The results of election to fill the vacancies in Council were as follows:

<u>Candidates</u>	<u>Votes</u>
Assoc Prof ChM Dr Juan Joon Ching	78
Datuk ChM Dr Soon Ting Kueh	73
Academician ChM Dr Ho Chee Cheong	61
ChM Chang Hon Fong	58
Asst. Prof ChM Dr Yvonne Choo Shuen Lann	50
Dato' ChM Dr Hj Mas Rosemal Hakim Mas Haris	49
Prof ChM Dr Rusli Daik	40
ChM Dr Fatimah Salim	37
Dato' Hj ChM Mohamed Zaini Bin Abdul Rahman	35
Prof ChM Dr Mansor Ahmad	33
Snr Assoc Prof ChM Dr Kathiresan a/I Sathasivam	32
Prof ChM Dr Phang Sook Wai	30
ChM Dr Nurul Huda binti Abd Karim	29
Assoc Prof ChM Dr Lee Hooi Ling	28
ChM Dr Lim Vuanghao	26
Prof ChM Dr Teh Geok Bee	24
ChM Dr Nor Aziyah binti Bakhari	22
Assoc Prof ChM Dr Zainiharyati Bt Mohd Zain	17

7.5 The Registrar announced the following Council members were elected and congratulated them:

	<u>Term</u>
Assoc Prof ChM Dr Juan Joon Ching	2023-2026
Datuk ChM Dr Soon Ting Kueh	2023-2026
Academician ChM Dr Ho Chee Cheong	2023-2026
ChM Chang Hon Fong	2023-2026
Asst. Prof ChM Dr Yvonne Choo Shuen Lann	2023-2026
Dato' ChM Dr Hj Mas Rosemal Hakim Mas Haris	2023-2025
Prof ChM Dr Rusli Daik	2023-2024

- 8. To appoint qualified auditors and determine their remuneration
- 8.1 ChM Dr Malarvili Ramalingam proposed the same external auditors, SP Tan & Sundar and Leong Wai Leng, to be appointed for year 2023. Members supported this proposal.
- 8.2 Datuk ChM Dr Soon Ting Kueh proposed ChM Eric Seah Peng Kiang and Dato' ChM Tang Ngat Ngoh to be appointed as internal auditors for year 2023. Members agreed to this proposal. ChM Lee Yiu Lay's contribution as past internal auditor was acknowledged.
- 8.3 There were no other matters and Datuk ChM Dr Soon Ting Kueh closed the meeting by recording his appreciation to the members for their presence at this AGM. The AGM was adjourned at 5.13PM.

Prepared by
Jar
ChM Dr Aqeel Saravanan
Executive Director

Verified by

ChM Chang Hon Fong Hon. Secretary

Datuk ChM Dr Soon Ting Kueh
President

Confirmed at 57th Annual General Meeting on

APPENDIX A

ATTENDANCE LIST AT 56^{TH} IKM AGM HELD ON 18^{TH} MARCH 2023 AT ONE WORLD HOTEL, BANDAR UTAMA, PETALING JAYA

No.	Name	Grade
1	Ahmad Zaharuddin bin Zahari, ChM	MMIC
2	Angeline Chai Yee Fang, ChM	MMIC
3	Aqeel Saravanan, ChM Dr	MMIC
4	Aw Wai Boon, ChM	MMIC
5	Awis Sukarni bin Mohmad Sabere, ChM Dr	MMIC
6	Azizah binti Baharum @ Abdul Aziz, ChM Dr	MMIC
7	Buvearasan a/l Muniandy, ChM	MMIC
8	Chan Li Hua, ChM	MMIC
9	Chan Pooi Ling, ChM	LMIC
10	Chang Hon Fong, ChM	FMIC
11	Chen Seong Fong, ChM Dr	FMIC
12	Cheryl Low Yi Lian, ChM	MMIC
13	Chong Chiew Let, ChM Dr	MMIC
14	Chua Chong Oie, ChM	MMIC
15	Damien Khoo Yiyuan, ChM Ts	MMIC
16	Emilia binti Kimlon, ChM	MMIC
17	Eng Aik Hwee, ChM Dr	FMIC
18	Farhanah binti Jarkasi, ChM	MMIC
19	Fatimah Salim, ChM Dr	MMIC
20	Goh Choo Ta, ChM Dr	FMIC
21	Halimah Abdul Rahim, ChM	MMIC
22	Hazim Syahmi Bin Elias, ChM	MMIC
23	Ho Chee Cheong, Academician ChM Dr	FMIC
24	Jafariah Jaafar, Assoc. Prof. ChM Dr	FMIC
25	Jaya Kumar a/l Veellu, ChM	MMIC
26	Jenny Lee Nyuk Len, ChM Dr	FMIC
27	Juan Joon Ching, Assoc. Prof ChM Dr	MMIC
28	Julia Tan Meihua, ChM	MMIC
29	Kathiresan a/l Sathasivam, Snr. Assoc. Prof. ChM Dr	FMIC
30	Lam Ah Chye, ChM	MMIC
31	Lam Yong Ching, ChM	MMIC
32	Lau Cheng Siew, ChM	MMIC
33	Lee Ah Lek, ChM	MMIC
34	Lee Chai Guan, ChM Dr.	MMIC
35	Lee Chen Hoe, ChM	MMIC
36	Lee Hooi Ling, ChM Dr.	FMIC
37	Lee Shoek Yin, ChM	MMIC
38	Lee Yiu Lay, ChM	MMIC
39	Lee Yook Heng, Prof ChM Dr	FMIC
40	Li Hui Ling, ChM	MMIC
41	Lim Ah See, ChM	MMIC
42	Lim Geok Hock, ChM	MMIC
43	Lim Teck Hock, ChM Dr	MMIC

44	Lim Vuanghao, ChM Dr	MMIC
45	Linda Ng Yian Yian, ChM Dr	FMIC
46	Loo Poh Ling, ChM	MMIC
47	Low May Lee, ChM Dr	MMIC
48	Mah Wee Li, ChM Dr	MMIC
49	Maimonah Sulaiman, Datin ChM	MMIC
50	Malarvili Ramalingam, ChM Dr	FMIC
51	Mansor Ahmad, ChM Dr	FMIC
52	Marina binti Mokhtar, ChM	MMIC
53	Marlinda binti Musa, ChM	MMIC
54	Mas Faiz bin Mas Rosemal Hakim, ChM	LMIC
55	Mas Rosemal Hakim Mas Haris, Dato' ChM Dr Hj	FMIC
56	Melati Binti Khairuddean, Assoc. Prof. ChM Dr.	MMIC
57	Michelle Teh Phaik Kim, ChM	MMIC
58	Mohamed Zaini Bin Abdul Rahman, Dato' Hj ChM	FMIC
59	Mohd Asri bin Razali, ChM	MMIC
60	Mohd Azizi Al-Hafiz Wirzal, ChM	MMIC
61	Mohd Azlan bin Kassim, ChM Dr	MMIC
62	Mohd Faris bin Ismail, ChM	MMIC
63	Mohd Ridhwan Bin Adam, ChM Dr.	MMIC
64	Mohd Suhaifizan bin Arifin, ChM	MMIC
65	Mugilan A/I Rajendran, ChM	MMIC
66	Muhammad Hakimin bin Shafie, ChM Dr.	MMIC
67	Muhammad Zamir Othman, ChM Dr	MMIC
68	New Siu Yee, ChM Dr	MMIC
69	Ng Peng Chiang, ChM	MMIC
70	Ng Pui Wan, ChM	MMIC
71	Ngai Koh Sing, ChM Dr	MMIC
72	Nor Aziyah binti Bakhari, ChM Dr.	MMIC
73	Norizah binti Abdul Rahman, ChM Dr	MMIC
74	Nur Atiqah Hamidun, ChM	MMIC
75	Nur Qamra Binti Ab Aziz, ChM	LMIC
76	Nur Syahirah Binti Hussin, ChM	LMIC
77	Nurfaizah Abu Tahrim, ChM Dr	MMIC
78	Nurul Asikin Bt Mijan, ChM Dr	MMIC
79	Nurul Huda Binti Abd Karim, ChM Dr	MMIC
80	Nurzuhrah binti Hassan, ChM	MMIC
81	Ooi Ing Hong, ChM Dr.	MMIC
82	Phang Sook Wai, Prof. ChM Dr	MMIC
83	Pua Hiang, ChM	MMIC
84	Rusli Bin Daik, Prof. ChM Dr.	FMIC
85	Saeidah Binti Ja'afar, ChM	MMIC
86	Sam Loo Yeo Ming, ChM	MMIC
87	Seah Peng Kiang, Eric, ChM	MMIC
88	Shafek Hamlan Bin Abdul Hamid, ChM	MMIC
89	Shahrul Nizam Ahmad, ChM Dr	MMIC
90	Shailini Ashoka, ChM Dr	MMIC
91	Shanmuga Suntharam a/l Kittappa, ChM	MMIC

92	Sharifah Norfarahani binti Syed Nasir, ChM	MMIC
93	Soon Siew Hua, ChM	MMIC
94	Soon Ting Kueh, Datuk ChM Dr	FMIC
95	Steven Tea Hing San, ChM	FMIC
96	Suraini binti Mat Yasin, ChM	MMIC
97	Tam Yeen Mum, ChM	MMIC
98	Tan Hee Peng, ChM	MMIC
99	Tan Suan Gaik, ChM	MMIC
100	Tan Swee Hua, ChM	MMIC
101	Tan Toa Hock, ChM	MMIC
102	Tan Yee Seng, ChM Dr	MMIC
103	Tang Ngat Ngoh, Dato' ChM	MMIC
104	Tee Guan Fui, ChM	MMIC
105	Teh Geok Bee, Prof. ChM Dr.	FMIC
106	Teh Say Lee, ChM	MMIC
107	Teo Chook Kiong, ChM	FMIC
108	Thiruventhan a/l Karunakaran, ChM Dr.	MMIC
109	Vivaygananthan a/l K. Kathireson, ChM	MMIC
110	Wan Nur Aini Binti Wan Mokhtar, ChM Dr	MMIC
111	Wan Shahida binti Haji Wan Ali, ChM	MMIC
112	Wong Lai Peng, Asst Prof ChM Dr	MMIC
113	Yang Farina Abdul Aziz, Prof ChM Dr	FMIC
114	Yap Fei Ching, ChM	MMIC
115	Yeo Chien Ing, ChM Dr	MMIC
116	Yeoh Beng Hoong, ChM	LMIC
117	Yew Chong Hooi, DCP(R) Assoc Prof Dato' ChM Dr	FMIC
118	Yian May Leng, ChM	MMIC
119	Yong Soon Kong, Assoc. Prof. ChM Dr	MMIC
120	Yvonne Choo Shuen Lann, Asst Prof ChM Dr	MMIC
121	Zainiharyati Mohd Zain, ChM Dr	MMIC
122	Zaiton Binti Abdul Majid, ChM Dr.	MMIC
123	Zaiton Binti Abu Baidah, ChM	LMIC
124	Zuriati Zakaria, Datin ChM Dr	FMIC